
MINUTES 
South Bay Cities Council of Governments 

Thursday, April 22, 2004 
Redondo Beach Public Library 

 
1st Vice Chair Seamans called the South Bay Cities Council of Governments to order at 7:12 p.m.  In 
attendance were the following Board Members: 
 
Terrence Terauchi, Gardena Neil Roth, Lawndale 
Robert Pullen-Miles, Lawndale Susan Dever, Lomita 
Jim Aldinger, Manhattan Beach Linda Wilson, Manhattan Beach 
Dwight Abbott, Palos Verdes Estates Don Szerlip, Redondo Beach 
Judy Mitchell, Rolling Hills Estates Susan Seamans, Rolling Hills Estates 
Paul Nowatka, Torrance  
 
Also in attendance were the following persons: 
 
Jacki Bacharach, SBCCOG     Diane Cameron, SBCCOG 
Mike Martinet, Area G, Disaster Prep. David Madson, AQMD 
Renee Berlin, MTA Luis Cetina, MWD 
Randall Neudecil, MWD Mary Strenn, SB City Mgrs. Assoc. 
Joe Aro, SBEDP Marilyn Lyon, SBE$C  
 
 
FLAG SALUTE - LED BY 1ST VICE CHAIR SEAMANS 
 
SELF-INTRODUCTIONS 

  
Board Member Roth commented that this was his last meeting and he has enjoyed working with the COG 
Board Members noting that participation from all the South Bay cities is very important.  He thanked everyone 
for their support. 
 
MOTION TO ACCEPT AND FILE REPORT OF CITY CLERK OF REDONDO BEACH ON POSTING OF THE 
AGENDA     
 
MOTION by Board Member Roth, seconded by 1st Vice Chair Seamans to accept and file the report of the City 
Clerk of Redondo Beach on posting of the agenda. 
 
THERE BEING NO OBJECTION, SO ORDERED. 
  
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANY CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
Executive Director Bacharach pulled Item D. Contract for Bookkeeping Services in tandem with Item E. 
Resolution to Change Treasurer and Auditor as of July 1, 2004 from the Consent Calendar. 
 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC  

 
NONE 
 
1st Vice Chair Seamans noted she was pleased to present a Certificate of Recognition to outgoing Board 
Member Roth for his outstanding service and commitment to cities working together addressing issues and 
sharing ideas of mutual importance.  She wished him well in his future endeavors. 
 



 2 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
MOTION by Board Member Aldinger, seconded by Board Member Abbott to approve the Consent Calendar 
as amended. 
A. March Board Meeting Minutes – Approved. 
 
B. Dues for Fiscal Year 2004-05 – Approved. 
 
C. Contract for Management Services – Approved. 
 
F. Meeting Schedule for the Remainder of 2004 – Approved. 
 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION PRIOR TO ACTION  
 
Items pulled from Consent Calendar: 
 
D. Contract for Bookkeeping Services 
 

Executive Director Bacharach noted that the Steering Committee recommended consideration of Margie 
Waite and has submitted a revised version of the recommendation for bookkeeping and auditing 
services for the COG’s review.  Additionally, Board Member Wilson stated that this proposal provides for 
improved overall financial control. 
 
Board Member Szerlip moved, seconded by Board Member Wilson 

 
TO APPROVE THE LETTER OF PROPOSAL FOR BOOKKEEPING SERVICES FROM 
MARGIE WAITE  

 
  PASSED UNANIMOUSLY   

 
 ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION PRIOR TO ACTION 
 

A. Cal Fed Delta Process 
 

Luis Cetina, Metropolitan Water District, made a presentation of the Delta Improvement Package and how it 
affects the infrastructure.  He distributed additional information and requested a letter of support for this 
proposal. 
 
Board Member Terauchi noted his concern with how many households would be affected from bringing 
93,000 feet of water from Northern California. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding how fish would be protected from this process where it was noted that a “bank” 
of water would actually stop the pump from destroying the fish.  It was noted that plumbing is also an issue to 
make sure that sufficient water is provided for the fish, but if they are too close, the pumps will shut down.   
Additionally, it was noted that this program will prevent this from happening in the future. 
 
Board Member Mitchell inquired if this project includes any effort to store water in Southern California.  
Randall Neudecil, Metropolitan Water District, stated that there may be a conveyance problem in Northern 
California, but the intent  is to free up and utilize the supply in Southern California. 
 
Board Member Seamans inquired as to how Northern California is handling this option.  Mr. Neudecil noted 
that they have been working with those representatives in order to compile a series of protections for water 



 3 

quality which is part of this package.  Additionally, he stated that this will go before the California Bay Delta 
Authority for approval. 
 
Brief discussion ensued regarding the Machado bill. Calls by SBCCOG to Senator Bowen helped to facilitate 
dialogue on this issue. Mr. Neudecil indicated that the language is currently being reduced to a few key 
points and that the board has not taken a position as yet given the fact that Senator Machado believes this 
bill is no longer necessary.   
 
Mr. Neudecil commented that there could be additional funds for elements of environmental water, but has 
not been decided upon as yet. 
 
Mr. Cetina encouraged anyone interested in taking a tour to contact him. 
 
Board Member Terauchi moved, seconded by Board Member Roth 
 

TO SEND A LETTER TO THE CALIFORNIA BAY DELTA AUTHORITY SUPPORTING THE DELTA 
IMPROVEMENT PACKAGE. 

 
  PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

B. Disaster Mitigation Planning Update 
 

Mike Martinet, Area G, reported that he is still in the process of working on the Disaster Mitigation Plan.  He 
stated that if a city does not have this in place, it could pose a substantial risk of losing federal funding.  He 
continued to report that he participated in a series of presentations this year noting that many cities have 
formed committees in an effort to move forward on this program which is due by November 1, 2004. 

 
Board Member Seamans indicated that Rolling Hills Estates has joined with Rancho Palos Verdes and a 
consultant in drafting a plan incorporating both cities’ concerns.  She suggested that other cities may want to 
consider following this approach. 

 
Executive Director Bacharach noted that the COG would be pleased to assist those cities interested in 
working together.  Joe Aro, SBEDP, commented that his organization would also be available to work with 
cities as well. 

 
Scott Gobble, SCE, stated that all utility companies are involved and the more cities work together, the better 
the plan would be collectively. 

 
Board Member Dever inquired as to the five components.  Mr. Martinet explained the following points:  1)  
The plan must be approved; 2)  The public must be involved; 3)  Hazards that could impact the community 
must be identified; 4)  Risk analysis must be included; and 5)  An analysis of how the infrastructure is 
affected.    
 

 THERE BEING NO OBJECTION, THIS ITEM WAS RECEIVED AND FILED. 
 
C. South Bay Energy $avings Center 
 

Marilyn Lyon, project manager, reported on several community events that will take place, including Women 
in Business Conference, Earth Day, etc.  She noted that their outreach program is working well with the 
public as well as with utility companies for training sessions.  She then invited everyone to see the Center. 
 



 4 

Ms. Lyon informed the Board that a video about the program is being prepared to send to all cable 
companies in the South Bay.  Executive Director Bacharach commended her on an outstanding job she is 
doing. 
 
Scott Gobble, SCE, suggested included the energy efficiency program in various newsletters. 
 
Ms. Lyon also showed the new logo for the Center. 
 
THERE BEING NO OBJECTION, THIS ITEM WAS RECEIVED AND FILED. 

 
D. Setting SBCCOG Work Program and Priorities for Fiscal Year 2004-05 
 

Executive Director Bacharach provided an extensive overview of the Proposed Priorities and Work Program 
as well as the current programs (as per agenda material).  She was pleased to report that she is in receipt of 
a $6,000 check from California Water Service, as well as a verbal commitment from Verizon for funding to be 
allocated for the Traffic Alert System Utility Permit Enhancement project.   
 
Brief discussion ensued regarding development of a possible commercial real estate website. 
 
Board Member Abbott suggested focusing on a few items from the list as these priorities will need some 
consensus from the Board. 
 
Board Member Szerlip recommended that, while there are still ongoing projects, at least three additional 
items be discussed by priority rather than going before the general assembly. 
 
Executive Director Bacharach noted she will provide a list requesting feedback from each Board Member as 
to what priorities are desired for review at the next meeting.  

 
E. Board Meeting Location for Fiscal Year 2004-05 
 

Executive Director Bacharach noted that the Steering Committee has been given permission by the City of 
Rolling Hills Estates to meet in their council chambers. 
 
Brief discussion ensued regarding location of future SBCCOG Board meetings.  It was the consensus of the 
Board to check room availability in the Cities of Torrance and Redondo Beach. 
 

 
COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
A. Standing Committees 
 

1. Legislative Committee 
 

Board Member Mitchell requested the Board consider support of AB 2006 which would establish 
the “Reliable Electric Service Act of 2004” and put in place a number of important procedures 
that would facilitate and encourage investment in California’s energy infrastructure. 
Discussion ensued regarding the following bills: 1)  HR 3550 which would authorize funds for 
Federal-aid highways, safety and transit programs: and 2)  SB 1774 which would implement a 
constitutional measure to exchange funding from local sales tax and VLF revenues for an 
equivalent amount of schools’ share of property tax. 

 
Re: SB 1397, David Madsen, AQMD, stated that the federal standards are now inline with the 
state.  He noted that an update will be provided at the next meeting.  Board Member Abbott 



 5 

expressed his concern that state restrictions versus federal could effectively drive sources to 
other states. 

 
In regards to AB 2006, Mr. Gobble distributed information to the Board explaining the content of 
the bill. 

 
 Board Member Aldinger moved, seconded by Board Member Szerlip 
 

 TO APPROVE A LETTER SUPPORTING AB 2006. 
 
  THERE BEING NO OBJECTION, SO ORDERED. 
 
 2. Los Angeles Air Force Base Regional Alliance (Joe Aro) 
 

Joe Aro, SBEDP, indicated that the following cities have set aside funding for the Regional Alliance:  
El Segundo, Redondo Beach, Manhattan Beach, Rancho Palos Verdes and Torrance. He 
commented that he would like to see all South Bay cities contribute as well.  In addition, it was noted 
that additional meetings will take place in Washington, D.C. and the SBCCOG will be notified when 
their bulletin is circulated. 
 
Mr. Aro invited everyone to attend the next Regional Alliance meeting scheduled for April 23 at 8:00 
a.m. located at the Torrance Marriott. 
 
Board Member Abbott and Mr. Aro engaged in extensive discussion regarding the impacts losing 
this base would have on the Air Force as well as the Department of Defense. 
 
Mr. Aro also noted that he attended Governor Schwarzenegger’s workers’ compensation bill signing 
in Long Beach.  Other events he announced included the Annual Investor’s Luncheon on May 12, 
and the SBEDP Forecast Conference on October 20. 

 
3. MTA 
 

Pam O’Connor, MTA, reported that their board met to discuss their budget set for adoption in June.  
She noted that Proposition A and C guidelines are currently under revision. 
 

4. AQMD 
 
Mr. Madsen reported that the AQMD is sponsoring a “Mow Down Air Pollution 2004 Electric Lawn 
Mower Exchange” wherein residents may trade in their old lawn mower for a new cordless one for 
$100 at Hollywood Park on June 12.  He noted that he will provide an update on new standards from 
the federal government. 
 

 
B. OTHER AGENCIES 
 

1. SCAG Committees 
 
 Paul Nowatka reported on the upcoming Regional Housing Summit on May 21.. 
 



 6 

 Energy and Environment 
 
 With Neil Roth leaving the council, the SBCCOG can make an appointment to this committee.  

Those interested were asked to contact Executive Director Bacharach. 
 
 Regional Council 
 
 It was noted that the nomination period for the District #28 Regional Council seat closes May 3 and 

that there will also be an election to replace Sandy Jacobs for District #40.   
 It was noted that May 6 is the SCAG General Assembly. 
 
 
2. League of California Cities 

 
 Executive Director Bacharach noted that the League is in discussions with Governor 

Schwarzenegger on his willingness to support their initiative if the cities’ agree to take a two-year 
funding cut.  She noted the League’s concern about taking this ballot to the public if the Governor’s 
decides to oppose it.  Additionally, she stated that the League has collected over 1,000,000 
signatures to qualify the initiative for the election. 

 
 

UPCOMING EVENTS & ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
It was announced that Assemblymember Jenny Oropeza will be holding a town hall meeting on May 6. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Board Member Aldinger moved, seconded by Board Member Szerlip 
 

TO ADJOURN THE MEETING AT 9:34 P.M. 
 
THERE BEING NO OBJECTION, SO ORDERED.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted,      
 
 
 
Hope J. Nolan 
Minutes Recorder 


